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[START RECORDING] 1 

MS. JULIA BOVE:  Good evening, everyone.  2 

This is a joint public hearing in the Department 3 

of Education, Community Education Council 22, 4 

and School Leadership Team of Andries Hudde 5 

Middle School.  I am the Community 6 

Superintendent, District 22.  My name is Julia 7 

Bove.  We have asked District 22 Community 8 

Education Council and the School Leadership Team 9 

of Andries Hudde Middle School to participate in 10 

this joint public hearing.  I am joined this 11 

evening by Ms. Vontinelli, the Principal of 12 

Hudde, administrators and teachers from Hudde 13 

Community.  The CEC was invited this evening.  14 

They did respond that they would attend.  15 

However, as of right now, I have not seen them 16 

yet.  So when they arrive, I certainly will 17 

point them out and introduce them.  I am also 18 

joined this evening by Ms. Maureen Murphy from 19 

SUNY, to my right, and - - members of the SL 20 

Team for Andries Hudde.  The purpose of this 21 

hearing is to provide you—I apologize.  The 22 

purpose of this hearing is for you to provide 23 

comments about the proposal.  Before I describe 24 

the proposal, I want to make sure you are aware 25 
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of the opportunity to provide your input.  All 1 

folks who wish to speak must sign up in the 2 

speaker sign up area in the back of the 3 

auditorium located right outside the doors.  The 4 

sign up will close in 15 minutes.  Speakers will 5 

be given the floor in the order that they signed 6 

up.  All comments are limited to two minutes.  7 

As you present your comments, please focus on 8 

presenting your opinion in a respectful tone, as 9 

these hearings are open to all members of the 10 

community and we want to create an environment 11 

that remains respectful to the entire community.  12 

The purpose of this hearing is to present your 13 

feedback and to also have an opportunity to hear 14 

others’ comments.  These goals can only be 15 

accomplished the tone remains calm and 16 

respectful.  There may be elected officials who 17 

are on in different times who have - - , and if 18 

they wish to speak, we will do our best to 19 

accommodate at the first opportune moment as 20 

they arrive.  Those that are here at the start 21 

of the public comments segment will be asked to 22 

speak first.  All comments made tonight will be 23 

mentioned in the analysis of public comment to 24 

be made available to the public after 6:00 p.m. 25 
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on the day before the PEP meeting.  That 1 

meeting is scheduled May 20
th
, 2015 at 6:00 p.m. 2 

at the Prospect Heights campus located at 883 3 

Placid Avenue, Brooklyn, New York 11225.  In 4 

addition, we welcome any comments and feedback 5 

you may have at any time before the panel votes 6 

on this proposal.  The email address and phone 7 

number where comments can be made is—if you have 8 

a pen and pencil, you certainly can write this 9 

down, D22proposals@schools.nyc.gov, and the 10 

telephone number is (212) 374-0208.  All 11 

comments received before 6:00 p.m. on the day 12 

before the PEP meeting at the above noted 13 

hearing or through telephone or email lines will 14 

be addressed by the DOE in an analysis of public 15 

comment, which is made available to the public 16 

after 6:00 p.m. on the day before the PEP 17 

meeting.  Success Academy Charter School has 18 

been approved by its Charter Authorizer, the 19 

State University of New York Charter School 20 

Institute or SUNY to open a new public charter 21 

school in Community School District 22.  22 

Although this proposal has not yet been approved 23 

by the Panel of Educational Policy, SUNY is 24 

required to hold a facilities hearing to receive 25 

mailto:D22proposals@schools.nyc.gov
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feedback on the proposed co-location of Success 1 

Academy New York 10 with Andries Hudde.  As 2 

such, this public hearing will also serve as a 3 

facilities hearing.  There is a representation 4 

from SUNY in attendance.  And if you have any 5 

questions or comments on the charter itself, 6 

Maureen Murphy to my right for SUNY will now 7 

tell you how to submit those questions and 8 

comments.  Ms. Murphy? 9 

MS. MAUREEN MURPHY:  Good evening.  My name 10 

is Maureen Murphy and I’m the Director of 11 

Charter Accountability at the SUNY Charter 12 

Schools Institute.  I’m here tonight to hold a 13 

public hearing on behalf of the Board of 14 

Trustees for the State University of New York or 15 

SUNY.  The education law requires SUNY to hold a 16 

public hearing at any time one of the charter 17 

schools it authorizes might open in an existing 18 

public school building.  I am here tonight to 19 

listen to your comments about the proposal for 20 

grades K through 4 of Success Academy Charter 21 

School of New York City 10 in partner with K240 22 

in the fall of 2016.  SUNY is holding its 23 

hearing now with the same time that the DOE is 24 

hold its joint public hearing so that we don’t 25 
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have to ask parents and community members to 1 

attend to different hearings on the same 2 

subject.  I will be taking notes on comments 3 

made tonight.  In addition, you may give me any 4 

written comments you may have you.  You can 5 

email comments to charters@SUNY.edu.  You can 6 

mail comments to 41 State Street, Suite 700, 7 

Albany, New York 12207 or fax comments to (518) 8 

427-6510.  Extra copies of our notices are in 9 

the back of the auditorium and with me if you 10 

need the contact information again.  SUNY will 11 

accept comments through May 29
th
, 2015, which is 12 

five business days after the meeting of the 13 

Panel for Educational Policy where this co-14 

location will be considered.  Thank you in 15 

advance for your comments this evening.   16 

MS. BOVE:  At this point, I will be reading 17 

the proposal summary.  This proposal concerns 18 

opening and co-location of Success Academy 19 

Charter School New York 10, 84K to - - announce 20 

Success Academy Midwood in a building which is 21 

located at 2500 Nostrand Avenue, Brooklyn, New 22 

York 11210 in Community School District 22 23 

beginning in the 2016/2017 school year.  If this 24 

proposal is approved, Success Academy Midwood 25 

mailto:charters@SUNY.edu
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will be co-located with Andries Hudde Middle 1 

School 22k240 Andries Hudde, an existent 2 

district middle school serving students in grade 3 

6 through 9.  K240 also provides space to Cambra 4 

(phonetic), which is a community school based 5 

organization, CEO.  If this proposal is 6 

approved, Success Academy Midwood will open in 7 

the fall of 2016, serving approximately 130 to 8 

180 students in kindergarten and 1
st
 grade and 9 

will add one grade each year until it serves 10 

approximately 375 to 495 students in 11 

kindergarten through 4
th
 grade in the 2019/2020 12 

school year.  The co-locations means that two or 13 

more school organizations are located in the 14 

same building, and they share common spaces like 15 

auditoriums, gymnasiums, libraries and 16 

cafeterias.  Pursuant to recent amendments to 17 

the education law which provides certain new and 18 

expanded charter schools with access to the 19 

facilities, Success Academy Midwood made co-20 

location request to the DOE for the space in 21 

District 22 to open a new elementary school 22 

option.  If this proposal is approved in the 23 

year 2015/2016 school year, Andries Hudde is 24 

projected to serve 805 to 835 6
th
 through 8

th
 25 
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grade students in K240, yielding a project 1 

utilization rate of 53% to 55% of K240.  In the 2 

2016/2017 school year, Andries Hudde is 3 

projected to serve 780 to 810 6
th
 through 8

th
 4 

grade students and Success Academy Midwood is 5 

projected to serve 130 to 180 kindergarten and 6 

1
st
 grade students in K240.  In 2019 to 2020, 7 

when Success Academy Midwood is fully phased in, 8 

K240 is projected to serve approximately 780 to 9 

810 6
th
 grade through 8

th
 grade students from 10 

Andries Hudde and 375 to 495 kindergarten 11 

through 4
th
 grade students from Success Academy 12 

Midwood for a total building enrollment of 1,155 13 

to 1,305 students, yielding a projected 14 

utilization rate of 76% to 86%.  If this 15 

proposal is approved in the 2016/2017 school 16 

year, the Success Academy Midwood would open and 17 

serve students in kindergarten and 1
st
 grade at 18 

K240, where it will be located with Andries 19 

Hudde.  Andries Hudde will continue to serve 20 

grades 6 through 8.  The DOE does not anticipate 21 

that the opening and co-location of Success 22 

Academy Midwood will impact the current student 23 

enrollment or instructional programming at 24 

Andries Hudde.  The DOE evaluates public school 25 
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buildings throughout the City that are 1 

underutilized, meaning they have space to 2 

accommodate additional students.  Building 240 3 

has the capacity to serve 1,526 students.  4 

Currently, the building is serving approximately 5 

873 students, yielding a building utilization 6 

rate of approximately 57%.  Therefore, building 7 

K240 is underutilized.  If this proposal is 8 

approved by the PEP, in 2019/2020 when Success 9 

Academy is at scale serving kindergarten through 10 

4
th
 grade, students at K240, there will be 11 

approximately 1,155 to 1,305 students in the 12 

building served by both schools, yielding a 13 

projected utilization rate of approximately 76% 14 

to 86%, which demonstrates there is sufficient 15 

space for both school organizations.  As set 16 

forth in the Building Utilization Plan, known as 17 

a BUP, that accompanies this proposal, there is 18 

sufficient space in the building to accommodate 19 

the school co-location.  If this proposal is 20 

approved beginning 2016/2017 school year, 21 

Success Academy Midwood will open and serve 22 

kindergarten and 1
st
 grade in K240.  Success 23 

Academy Midwood will accept students though a 24 

Charter 1 application with preference to 25 
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siblings of current or accepted students and 1 

to applicants who reside within District 22.  2 

Success Academy Midwood will serve general 3 

education students and students requiring 4 

special education services.  Future students 5 

with disabilities at Success Academy Midwood 6 

would receive mandated services.  Success 7 

Academy Midwood will also serve - - students.  8 

This proposal is not expected to impact 9 

admissions, current or future student 10 

enrollment, instructional programming or 11 

extracurricular programs or community 12 

partnerships currently offered at Andries Hudde, 13 

but the way extracurricular programs are 14 

completed within the building may be subject to 15 

change.  At this point, we are—I don’t see any 16 

SLT members.  Has anyone arrived from SLT?  17 

Okay.  So Mr. Costanzo (phonetic) at this point?  18 

Yes.  We’re going to pass it on.  If I could 19 

pass this down.   20 

MS. VANESSA SUMMERS:  Good evening.  My name 21 

is Vanessa Summers and I’m on the Hudde SLT.  I 22 

oppose the current proposal to co-locate Success 23 

Academy Charter School with Hudde Middle School.  24 

As I see these young children here tonight, a 25 
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sampling of children whose parents may have 1 

charter school applied for Success Academy 2 

lottery and were successful, I see children who 3 

have had a successful experience and are not 4 

necessarily getting a better education as the 5 

commercials would lead you to believe, but are 6 

receiving the information they are being taught 7 

and are thriving as students.  But what I don’t 8 

see, I don’t see the children who did not fit 9 

into the Success Academy learning system.  I 10 

don’t see the kids who, after being accepted 11 

into the lottery and continue to score below 12 

level who are asked to leave.  I don’t see the 13 

future leaders of the world who Success cannot 14 

accommodate today because these individuals have 15 

an Individualized Education Plan with a mandated 16 

accommodation and Success cannot fulfill that 17 

accommodation.  I don’t see these kids because 18 

when Success tells them their setting is not 19 

working for your child, they send them back to, 20 

as the commercial states, “the broken school”.  21 

Well, Hudde is not broken.  We have a new 22 

principal with new ideas.  And if she were given 23 

a chance to have classes 18 or under in terms of 24 

student population, she would be just as 25 
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successful as Success.  And not only would she 1 

be successful, she would also offer the students 2 

who were turned away after they showed they 3 

could not adapt to the Success learning program.  4 

Thank you. 5 

(Applause) 6 

MS. GOLDA SMITH:  Good evening.  My name is 7 

Golda Smith and I am on the Hudde SLT.  I do not 8 

support the proposed co-location of Success 9 

Academy.  What I’m going to read is a letter 10 

that I addressed to Chancellor Marino 11 

(phonetic).  “My name is Golda Smith and I am 12 

the Co-President of the PTA organization at 13 

Andries Hudde Middle School in Brooklyn.  I’m 14 

writing you to make sure you understand how 15 

opposed parents at my school are to the 16 

Department of Education’s plan to locating 17 

Success Academy Elementary Charter School inside 18 

our school building.  Hudde is a thriving 19 

dynamic middle school.  As a long time educator, 20 

you know how difficult it can be to create and 21 

sustain a successful middle school.  Instead of 22 

attempting to build on Hudde’s achievements, the 23 

school is being penalized by being forced to 24 

give up space to an early elementary school, 25 
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grades K through 4.  Assigning early 1 

elementary grades to the third floor of a 2 

bustling middle school building strikes many 3 

Hudde parents as - - .  I, myself have thought 4 

co-locating different grade levels was a 5 

practice that had ended once you and Mayor De 6 

Blasio took office.  But even if an early 7 

elementary charter school was housed on the 8 

first floor, it would be a poor use of space.  9 

We have a successful middle school program, one 10 

that is supported and churched by the community.  11 

We fear middle school students zoned for Hudde 12 

will be forced to enroll elsewhere because space 13 

is being awarded to a growing charter school.  14 

As Chancellor, you have made middle schools a 15 

priority, so why penalize one that works?  This 16 

is my 6
th
 grade daughter’s first year at Hudde 17 

and next year my son will also be joining her in 18 

the gifted program.  But parents of older Hudde 19 

children have noted how the schools art and 20 

music programs have been reduced.  This belief 21 

this - - was allowed to happen to create space 22 

for a charter school to move in.  That belief”— 23 

(Applause) 24 

MS. SUMMERS:  “That belief, whether true or 25 
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not, gained further credibility when the owner 1 

of Success Academy showed up at Hudde 2 

unannounced, without an appointment and required 3 

our principal to give her a tour of the 4 

building.  It felt as jarring is if someone had 5 

showed up into your home unannounced and started 6 

deciding where they were going to put their 7 

furniture when they moved in, only”— 8 

(Applause) 9 

MS. SUMMERS:  --“only you hadn’t decided to 10 

sell the house.  It was a poor beginning.  So on 11 

behalf of the Hudde PTA, I am asking you to 12 

reconsider the DOE’s proposal to co-locate the 13 

Success Charter Academy Elementary at the site 14 

of Hudde.  We have a wonderful middle school and 15 

it deserves your support.” 16 

(Applause) 17 

MS. C. BENLEVI:  Good evening.  I do not 18 

support the proposed co-location of Success 19 

Academy Charter School at Andries Hudde’s Junior 20 

High School.  My child— 21 

(Applause) 22 

MS. BENLEVI:  My child at Hudde School 23 

deserves a quality education in Hudde.  Don’t 24 

steal my child’s possibilities.  We need a 25 
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reduction of class size, not a reduction of 1 

building use.  We need extra tutoring, not the 2 

reduction of rooms to tutor in.  We need a 3 

wonderful arts and science program, not less 4 

space to perform science experiments and perform 5 

art programs and music programs.  No to the 6 

proposed co-location of Success Academy Charter 7 

School. 8 

(Applause) 9 

FEMALE VOICE 1:  Good evening everyone.  I 10 

don’t support the proposed co-location of 11 

Andries Hudde Middle School with the Success 12 

Academy Charter School.  I don’t take issue with 13 

the parents from Success who came tonight to 14 

listen to us and to hear why we have issue with 15 

this proposal.  You all want what we want, a 16 

quality education for your children.  You made 17 

the choice to send your children to a charter 18 

school, which you thought was going to be best 19 

for you.  Two and a half years ago, I made the 20 

decision to send my child to a middle school 21 

which I thought would be best for him.  Now, at 22 

the rate we’re going, it’s being threatened for 23 

my eight year old.  By the time he reaches 24 

middle school age, he will not have a seat at 25 
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Andries Hudde.  That’s a fact.  I take issue 1 

with the DOE for allowing the proposal to go out 2 

stating that we have 873 children based on data 3 

from October of 2014;  we have 900 students 4 

right now. 5 

(Applause) 6 

FEMALE VOICE 1:  And I take issue with the 7 

DOE because they don’t go back, they don’t fact 8 

check, they don’t make sure that every child 9 

that’s currently in the building is accounted 10 

for before they say we have space for another 11 

child to sit in that seat.  We don’t allow our 12 

children to sit in the same car seat, so how 13 

could they sit in the same classroom seat? 14 

(Applause) 15 

FEMALE VOICE 1:  Shame on the SUNY Charter 16 

because they don’t go back and pick out 17 

successful co-locations.  They don’t go back and 18 

fact-check to see how many children are, in 19 

fact, in public schools.  They don’t go back and 20 

make sure that these co-locations are 21 

successful.  Because, like I said, as a parent, 22 

we all want the same things.  We do not have 23 

issue with parents who make choices to put their 24 

children into quality education;  we do have 25 
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issues with the organization, administration 1 

always deciding on when to make a decision for 2 

us and are really not going to go back to make 3 

sure that it works for all the children 4 

involved. 5 

(Applause) 6 

FEMALE VOICE 1:  My child needs a seat, your 7 

child needs a seat, but they cannot sit in the 8 

same seat. 9 

(Applause) 10 

FEMALE VOICE 1:  I am hoping that all the 11 

parents here who represent Success Academy go to 12 

other parents who represent Success Academy and 13 

let them know the other side of the coin.  That 14 

when you decide to enter your child into a 15 

lottery— 16 

(Applause) 17 

FEMALE VOICE 1:  --and you sign up for a co-18 

location with other children, that you are 19 

literally sitting on another child’s lap and 20 

it’s not right. 21 

(Applause) 22 

FEMALE VOICE 1:  Also, - - SUNY and the DOE 23 

work collaboratively to go back and review all 24 

co-locations to make sure that they are 25 
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successful, to make sure that all children are 1 

thriving and that all children have that same 2 

seat.   3 

(Applause) 4 

FEMALE VOICE 1:  And lastly, I would like to 5 

say that if the proposal is approved and we do 6 

share space, every parent and every staff member 7 

and every person who is in Hudde who ever 8 

encountered on my son’s journey through this 9 

school has been very accommodating and welcoming 10 

and I’m sure they would be, but just remember 11 

whose house you’re in. 12 

(Applause) 13 

MS. BOVE:  At this point, we’ve concluded 14 

the formal presentations.  We will now open the 15 

floor for public comments.  Speakers will be 16 

given the floor in the order that they signed 17 

up.  All comments are limited to two minutes 18 

please.  And we will take the children first.  19 

Our first speaker—and by the way, since we 20 

mentioned before, the list is signed, remember I 21 

said that it was 15 minutes prior to the 22 

opening.  So our first speaker is Jessica 23 

Muldina (phonetic)—Justine.  I apologize.  6:21. 24 

(Applause) 25 
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MS. JUSTINE MULDINA:  Don’t force Hudde to 1 

give up space that Hudde wants to improve with 2 

more activities for the school like dance, art 3 

and musical.  And that’s all.  And what will the 4 

kids think when little kids with bigger kids?  5 

Do you agree with little kids to be in a school 6 

with bigger kids?  Don’t you think of something 7 

that will happen when bigger kids— 8 

(Applause) 9 

MS. MULDINA:  --in the school? 10 

(Applause) 11 

MS. BOVE:  Ethan Martin. 12 

(Applause) 13 

MR. ETHAN MARTIN:  I would just like to say 14 

that before I came here for 2
nd
 through 5

th
, I 15 

was also in a charter school, - - Charter 16 

School, and they had their own building and they 17 

were allowed to build up and build more grades 18 

in their own building.  So why do you have to 19 

come into our building?  So to take our students 20 

and the people who want to go here, but the 21 

spaces will be taken up because Success is 22 

taking the space, the leftover space. 23 

(Applause) 24 

MR. MARTIN:  And I would like to elaborate 25 
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on the point and say like - - people, little 1 

kids are probably might get bullied because the 2 

little kids are just walking around and minding 3 

their own business and just a random bigger kid, 4 

maybe a 7
th
 grader just bullying them.  It is 5 

just not a (background noise)— 6 

(Applause)  7 

MS. BOVE:  Brian Mallo (phonetic). 8 

(Applause) 9 

MR. BRIAN MALLO:  How are you guys doing 10 

today? 11 

MALE VOICE 1:  Good Brian.  How are you? 12 

MR. MALLO:  You know, for me, I’m a 6
th
 13 

grader and I really love Hudde, but I don’t want 14 

a charter school to take all of our space 15 

because think of it - - has like two charter 16 

schools and - - always has problems because - -17 

 . 18 

(Applause) 19 

MR. MALLO:  So don’t force Hudde to give 20 

space to charter school because like also what 21 

Ethan said that maybe 7
th
 graders, 8

th
 graders 22 

might bully them and it’s a really bad idea.   23 

(Applause) 24 

MS. BOVE:  Ashley Thomas, 6
th
 grader at the—I 25 
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can’t see the name right.  It says Hailey 1 

Thomas?  Last name Thomas.  Not here?  Alright.  2 

We have it looks like Jada. 3 

(Applause) 4 

MS. JADA:  Turning Hudde into a charter 5 

school - - because we won’t have any afterschool 6 

- - , and like - - all the afterschool helps to 7 

- - .  The kids will be mean, like what Jasmine 8 

said.  She said that the kids in the school - - 9 

space for other things.  If the kids don’t have 10 

enough space, how we’re going to share - - with 11 

the other kids - - ?  And but, - - and going 12 

back to what he just said, he said that kids 13 

came here for a reason and - - because lots of 14 

kids get bullied all around - - .  If we don’t 15 

have afterschool, it’s like having nothing in 16 

our life without - - . 17 

(Applause) 18 

MS. BOVE:  Next student, Naomi. 19 

(Applause) 20 

MS. NAOMI:  I don’t think that Hudde should 21 

be turned into a charter school because some of 22 

us already have our programs like dance and 23 

orchestra and computers.  And Success Academy 24 

would come and interfere with that and we would 25 
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lose everything.  And going back to what Ethan 1 

said, lots of kids were bullying him and I don’t 2 

think it’s a good idea for littler kids to come 3 

into a 6
th
 and 7

th
 grade school and just suddenly 4 

appear because they could get bullied and it’s 5 

not the right thing to do. 6 

(Applause) 7 

MS. BOVE:  At this point, - - as mentioned 8 

before, because—okay.  If I could have Ms. 9 

Hilary Gadar (phonetic) please. 10 

(Applause) 11 

MS. HILARY GADAR:  Now we need to - - .  You 12 

know I wrote a lot of emails over the weekend.  13 

I’m the IEP Coordinator here and also a graduate 14 

of Hudde. 15 

(Applause) 16 

MS. GADAR:  I can’t tell you everything, but 17 

I can tell you this, if I - - when I observe 18 

children today, there is no way I would send 19 

them into a charter with - - kids on the other 20 

side, not a chance.  You tell us we have space?  21 

That’s right.  Hudde had space for their 22 

children to grow.  You’re taking it away.  This 23 

is our home.  You’re coming into our home.  24 

You’re coming into my house and taking my - - 25 
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off and I just can’t stand there and watch 1 

you.  Everybody, this is our house.  We need 2 

that space.  What happens now?  You push our 3 

kids together and make larger classes?  You 4 

could imagine what it will do if we get a third 5 

more students.  We’re going to have a filthy 6 

building.  Are you sending us supplies?  Are you 7 

sending us things to clean this building?  Look 8 

around.  It’s immaculate.  We have room for our 9 

kids to grow.  They have individualized 10 

attention.  We have small groups.  We have 11 

special activities.  What are they doing now?  12 

So we have space, but deal.  I mean, - - 13 

thinking about - - here to stay.  This is our 14 

home.  If I were raising kids today, and I’d 15 

love to, I’m here 32 years.  Where are you 16 

(background noise)— 17 

(Applause) 18 

MS. GADAR:  --put all the people?  My 19 

children, my brothers, everybody’s success - - .  20 

But if I had little kids, I wouldn’t send them 21 

here.  It’s too dangerous for your children.  22 

You’re not thinking.  You’re really not 23 

thinking.  You’re putting them with kids who 24 

don’t want your children here.  And you know 25 
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why?  Because they don’t belong here.  This 1 

isn’t a (background noise)— 2 

(Applause) 3 

MS. BOVE:  At this point, Mr. Alan Abrams.  4 

Do you know where the microphone is?   5 

MR. ALAN ABRAMS:  Good evening Hudde 6 

community.  Good evening Superintendent Bove.  I 7 

am Alan Abrams, the UFT District 22 8 

Representative and it is my pleasure to be here 9 

tonight to support the Hudde - - .  Charter 10 

schools speak of choice.  At the UFT, health and 11 

safety is not a choice.  Because health and 12 

safety is not a choice at the UFT, health 13 

hygienists Ed Olmstead, who is a Certified 14 

Industrial Hygienist and Jennifer Lawlor 15 

(phonetic), who is also a Health Hygienist were 16 

at - - for a walkthrough and we have major 17 

concerns if the Success Academy location was to 18 

come here at K240.  It will create overcrowding 19 

and impact fire and life safety.  There is not a 20 

parent here that does not think that (background 21 

noise)— 22 

(Applause) 23 

MR. ABRAMS:  --one.  Adding a charter school 24 

will significantly increase the school 25 
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population and place all our students at risk 1 

should there be a fire or other emergency.  The 2 

National Fire Prevention Association life safety 3 

codes require that kindergarten and 1
st
 grade 4 

students are located on the ground floor, moving 5 

pre-K and kindergarten classrooms to a higher 6 

floor will place these children at greater risk 7 

during an emergency evacuation.   8 

(Applause) 9 

MR. ABRAMS:  Ladies and gentlemen, 10 

emergencies are not planned.  Look around us, 11 

things change.  The kindergarten students will 12 

be using stairwells.  They can be trampled by 13 

6
th
, 7

th
 and 8

th
 grade students during an 14 

emergency evacuation.  This creates an - - 15 

hazard.  This was a middle school building in 16 

the ‘50s that included home economics, sewing, 17 

woodworking.  These shops, these shop classrooms 18 

were built for smaller class size.  There are 19 

six classrooms that do not meet the safety codes 20 

and fire safety laws that are now in effect.  21 

These classrooms are planned to be used by 22 

Success Academy.  Why would you put your 23 

children at risk? 24 

(Applause) 25 
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MR. ABRAMS:  The fire doors have holes in 1 

them.  The doors are not up to fire code and are 2 

not UL rated, lacking mechanisms to hold the 3 

door are not in closed position.  Clear plastic 4 

windows are not fire rated.  None of the fire 5 

doors have UL tabs.  None of the staircase doors 6 

have the panic hardware.  Why would you bring 7 

little children into this location if they do 8 

not know what to do? 9 

(Applause) 10 

MR. ABRAMS:  The hallways from the basement 11 

to the third floor all have asbestos.  Success 12 

does not follow the laws in removing asbestos or 13 

lighting;  they have been cited numerous times.   14 

(Applause) 15 

MR. ABRAMS:  They exit this building through 16 

former locker rooms on this side.  Why are you 17 

now making the building overcrowded?  It seems 18 

to me that Success is more concerned about real 19 

estate than they are about health and safety. 20 

(Applause) 21 

MS. BOVE:  At this point, Stephanie Coil 22 

(phonetic).  If I could have those members who 23 

signed up, let’s say from number four through 24 

eight just be ready, because you’ll be next.  25 
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Thanks. 1 

MS. STEPHANIE COIL:  Good evening everyone.  2 

My name is Stephanie Coil and I support Success 3 

Academy Schools from our network office. 4 

(Applause) 5 

MS. COIL:  it’s very nice to meet you all. 6 

(Applause) 7 

MS. COIL:  As you may know, there is strong 8 

parent - - for high quality schools in Midwood 9 

and nearby neighborhoods.  Midwood is located in 10 

Community School District 22.  In the lottery we 11 

ran just last month, Success Academy schools 12 

received 1,063 applications for families who 13 

live here in District 22.  Success Academy 14 

Burbank Beach, which is also located in District 15 

22, just two short miles from here received 19 16 

applications for each available seat.  We are so 17 

excited about the prospect of offering another 18 

high quality public school option in the 19 

district.  Last year, Success Academy Schools 20 

across the City ranked in the top 1% in math and 21 

the top 3% in English language arts in the 22 

entire state.  Our scholars are learning chess 23 

and debate, take dance and musical theater, have 24 

science five days a week, participate in HTML 25 
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coding— 1 

(Applause) 2 

MS. COIL:  --art and soccer, and take field 3 

studies all over the place.  We are so proud of 4 

what our scholars have been able to do across 5 

the network.  Our experiences with co-locations 6 

have been very positive and productive.  7 

Wherever we are located, we believe in creating 8 

a learning environment that is safe and 9 

conducive to learning for all students in the 10 

building.  If this proposal is approved, we look 11 

forward to bringing that same positive 12 

relationship here to K240 and are looking 13 

forward to working with the principal and the 14 

entire staff for a great 2016 school year and 15 

beyond.  Thank you. 16 

(Applause) 17 

MS. BOVE:  If you’re walking through, - - 18 

please just be ready.  And I hope I’m not 19 

mispronouncing this, Rasik Thomas (phonetic). 20 

(Applause) 21 

MS. RASIK THOMAS:  Hello everyone.  My name 22 

is Rasik Thomas and I’m a parent—my daughter, 23 

Shaffin (phonetic) - - .  (Background noise), so 24 

I’m here to support the co-location to have 25 
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Success - - in Midwood because (background 1 

noise)— 2 

(Applause) 3 

MS. THOMAS:  --with a chance.  All we need 4 

is a quality education for our kids.  We don’t 5 

want to steal nothing with - - .  We want to 6 

give them the best education possible and 7 

Success Academy is providing that.  I have heard 8 

everything you guys say all opposing it, but we 9 

- - .  Right?  Because they have no - - .  The 10 

kids know what to do in case of emergency and my 11 

daughter is only in 1
st
 grade and she knows what 12 

to do.  So safety is part of number one for us 13 

as well.  So it’s not - - putting the kids and 14 

we’re not here to do any dangerous practice.  15 

It’s a public school - - .  We just have to 16 

(background noise)— 17 

(Applause) 18 

MS. THOMAS:  We all - - that.  So coming 19 

here, I don’t think will take away anything from 20 

you guys because I have heard on summary of the 21 

proposal, you’re not—the capacity of the 22 

building is - - .  We have space.  They have 23 

enough space to have Success Academy here 24 

without you guys - - you.  And you would think 25 



 30 

about bullying.  There are schools from grade 1 

1, from kindergarten - - .  So what’s wrong with 2 

that?  Why would we have bullying in the school 3 

to begin with?  And this is the product of the 4 

community.  We ask - - too.  We don’t do 5 

bullying.  We don’t believe in that.  And these 6 

kids, they are not—they don’t know what bullying 7 

are.  So why would you guys, all parents, put 8 

that in the mind of kids.  What is - - doing 9 

(background noise)— 10 

(Applause) 11 

MS. THOMAS:  We can all - - .  You will 12 

provide the education - - four kids.  So this is 13 

all we’re asking four.  We’re not here for - - 14 

emergency.  We’re not here to take your place.  15 

We’re not here to take a seat from someone from 16 

the school.  This is the first we make progress 17 

as a family because of the quality of education.  18 

So we like and we make the proposal and if it is 19 

accepted, nothing is going to change for you 20 

guys who feel you’re going to be performing the 21 

way you do and we’re going to do our own.  22 

Therefore, that is (background noise)— 23 

(Applause) 24 

MS. BOVE:  Just as a reminder again, the 25 
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young lady right over there who has the cards.  1 

For those speakers are coming, especially at the 2 

podium, you should be reminded if it’s 15 3 

seconds or what have you.  Okay?  Next speaker 4 

is Angel—help me out here.  Speaker number five. 5 

MS. ANGELA MARTIN:  Angela Martin? 6 

MS. BOVE:  Yes. 7 

MS. MARTIN:  I’m Angela Martin, but could I 8 

please get my place right now so that Michael 9 

Davis can speak and I will speak at 16 please?  10 

Did you saw that on the record for me? 11 

FEMALE VOICE 2:  That’s fine, yes. 12 

MS. BOVE:  Yes. 13 

MS. MARTIN:  Thank you. 14 

FEMALE VOICE 2:  Sure. 15 

MR. MICHAEL DAVIS:  Good evening.  I feel 16 

like I’m coming back home.  I graduated from 17 

Hudde in 1968. 18 

(Applause) 19 

MR. DAVIS:  And when my wife told me about 20 

this meeting while I was making salad, I 21 

stopped, I got dressed, I ran down here because 22 

I want you to know that the school that I 23 

attended had the greatest impact on my life. 24 

(Applause) 25 
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MR. DAVIS:  I had the top teachers.  I 1 

walked to school, one block away.   Talk about 2 

the shops being closed, we had woodshop, 3 

electric shop, metal shop.  We had the finest 4 

teachers.  And the reason why this is gone and 5 

there’s a fight between charter schools and 6 

public schools is because there’s not enough 7 

funding for public schools. 8 

(Applause) 9 

MR. DAVIS:  And I’m really an expert on that 10 

because I have been a teacher since 1978 and 11 

I’ve seen the school system change over the 12 

years, unfortunately not for the better.  And 13 

parents, I know that you want the best for your 14 

kids and so does everyone else.  And when you 15 

divide the City amongst charter, which provide 16 

the students—I was reading the New York Times 17 

article.  I know teacher whose lives were 18 

shattered.  Teachers, I’m not talking about 19 

kids, teachers.  The charter came in, teachers, 20 

ATRs being paid $100,000 to do nothing.  You’ve 21 

got to fund your schools, get better teachers, 22 

better staff and don’t win a lotter.  It’s not 23 

about a lottery;  it’s about educating the 24 

public.   25 
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(Applause) 1 

MS. BOVE:  Do you have any questions?  2 

Kimberly Perkins. 3 

(Applause) 4 

MS. KIMBERLY PERKINS:  Good evening parents 5 

and staffs.  I’m a parent of Success Academy.  6 

My child is a 1
st
 grader.  Success Academy is an 7 

awesome school.  It doesn’t matter if we were 8 

chosen by lottery.  I don’t look at my son as 9 

the chosen one through a piece of paper.  I 10 

applied, he was accepted, so we went.   11 

(Applause) 12 

MS. PERKINS:  To each his own.  To everyone 13 

who’s in the school to get a better education, 14 

that’s what we want for ourselves.  Not only 15 

that, our children will not be invading anyone’s 16 

space.  You hardly could see our children, only 17 

at dismissal or arrival.  There will be no 18 

interaction between Hudde and Success Academy. 19 

(Applause) 20 

MS. PERKINS:  Our - - by scoring and numbers 21 

through math, reading, just like the traditional 22 

public schools.  Our teachers are well educated, 23 

well educated, well educated. 24 

(Applause) 25 
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MS. PERKINS:  They do teach very well.  My 1 

son went from K to 1
st
 based on what his academic 2 

level is.  They recognize it.  They tried him in 3 

1
st
.  He is beyond 1

st
 grade levels, still 4 

scoring higher and higher, as well as everybody 5 

else in the school.  The school is so great that 6 

I’ve never seen a child who does not want to go 7 

to school.  Success Academy has a great 8 

attendance record. 9 

(Applause) 10 

MS. PERKINS:  My child has never missed not 11 

one day, not one day of school, ever.  From this 12 

day forth that we are here at this hearing 13 

today, he has not missed school.  Because why?  14 

The teachers, the staff, they are willing to 15 

help these children and they are doing an 16 

awesome job, and these kids want to learn, to go 17 

to school.  So if you guys care, give them a 18 

chance.  We will prove those child at Success 19 

Academy will stand and rise.  Thank you. 20 

(Applause) 21 

MS. BOVE:  (Background noise).  Next 22 

speaker.  I apologize for his name.  I see - - 23 

Jesse Mason is the last name, Mason? 24 

(Applause) 25 
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MS. JESSE MASON:  Good afternoon everyone, 1 

parents at Hudde, parents of Success.  I believe 2 

my parents of Success, parents of Hudde, I do 3 

apologize to everyone at Hudde if you feel like, 4 

for any reason, that anyone in any other school 5 

is coming to take up your space.  And I— 6 

FEMALE VOICE 2:  (Interposing)  If you - - 7 

for people who can’t learn.  You can ask me.  I 8 

want to hear about it. 9 

MS. MASON:  Okay. 10 

FEMALE VOICE 2:  Alright ma’am. 11 

MS. MASON:  So I do apologize to any parent 12 

of Hudde, staff at Hudde who feel like any 13 

school of any sort is coming in to take up your 14 

space.  But one thing, like they let you guys 15 

know from the beginning, this school is middle 16 

school.  The children that we want to start to 17 

come here are kindergarten to 1
st
.  Kindergarten 18 

to 1
st
 in any school that Success Academy has co-19 

located has not had any interaction with middle 20 

schoolers.  They have not had interaction with 21 

children of any other age.  It’s not like we’re 22 

putting our children in school with kids of the 23 

same age or children of the same grade;  they’re 24 

two completely different grades, which means 25 
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that children of public school, you should 1 

have a certain kind of behavior when it comes to 2 

our little ones.   3 

(Applause) 4 

MS. MASON:  We didn’t - - at you.  And I - - 5 

to saying this before, gingerly.  Right?  6 

Generally, as a parent, I’m looking at my child.  7 

This is about—I’m looking at children all 8 

together when I’m looking at a public—when I’m 9 

looking at a junior high school child compared 10 

to an elementary kid - - .  That junior high 11 

schools have to keep that little child 12 

completely different than you would - - same 13 

kids. 14 

(Applause) 15 

MS. MASON:  But Success is not here to worry 16 

about bullying.  Success is not here to worry 17 

about all the other things.  We are here to give 18 

our children an education.  We are here to 19 

respect your space.  We are not here to take 20 

away from your space.  But just like you said to 21 

some of us that come into your house, the only 22 

time that we will come into your home is if we 23 

was to pay our way to come into your home, not 24 

to—and that’s exactly what would happen. 25 
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(Applause) 1 

MS. MASON:  Not to just steal from you, but 2 

to provide our children with an education, the 3 

same that you want to provide for your little 4 

one as well.  Not to take from you, but to give 5 

to more children, to give to children who are 6 

not getting what it is that they need. 7 

(Applause) 8 

MS. MASON:  There are children in 9 

kindergarten - - today who are not getting the 10 

education that they need.  This has nothing to 11 

do with junior high school, but it is starting 12 

from the bottom to work our way up.   13 

(Applause) 14 

MS. BOVE:  At this point, I have to call up 15 

Council Member Jumani Williams (phonetic). 16 

(Applause) 17 

MR. JUMANI WILLIAMS:  Good evening everyone.   18 

GROUP:  Good evening. 19 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Thank you for coming out.  I 20 

do want to thank—I know there’s some key members 21 

in the audience as well.  I’d like to thank them 22 

for coming out, but usually it hasn’t happened 23 

in the past.  Before I speak my mind, I do want 24 

to speak to a lot of the beautiful young kids 25 
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that I see from the Success Academy before I 1 

spoke how I felt because I don’t want them to 2 

get confused about some of the things that they 3 

hear up there.  So all the Success Academy— 4 

(Applause) 5 

MR. WILLIAMS:  --little kids, can we all 6 

give them a round of applause please for coming 7 

for the hearing? 8 

(Applause) 9 

MR. WILLIAMS:  And I want you kids, whatever 10 

school you go to, I want you to do your best and 11 

succeed at the way we know you can.  I don’t 12 

want you to be confused.  We all love you here 13 

and want you to be your best and succeed. 14 

(Applause) 15 

MR. WILLIAMS:  I will say that unfortunately 16 

some people have put the kids in the middle.  I 17 

am not opposed to the charter school as of 18 

right.  I am opposed to how charter school have 19 

been used and I believe there’s been a lot of 20 

deception going on in some of the charter 21 

schools.  My understanding is that charter 22 

schools should be used to figure out better ways 23 

to educate our children and then bring that 24 

information back to the rest of the children;  25 
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that has not happened.  Now every hearing that 1 

I’ve asked “What are we learning from the 2 

charter schools,” I get nothing in return.  When 3 

I ask “What have we learned that we can bring 4 

back to the rest of the schools,” I get nothing 5 

in return.  I am 100%-- 6 

(Applause) 7 

MR. WILLIAMS:  --against forced co-location.  8 

I don’t see the reasons to force something into 9 

a school.  They should find a way to work 10 

collaboratively so that all of our young people 11 

can benefit from that.  And Success is, Eva 12 

Boskowitz (phonetic) in particular, from what 13 

I’ve read, has cherry picked a lot of things to 14 

make sure that the best and the brightest go to 15 

her school.  Not everybody has the opportunity 16 

to cherry pick.  Not everybody has the 17 

opportunity that Success Academy provides.  I 18 

feel like gold dust is thrown up in the air and 19 

whoever can grab the dust wins.  And those of us 20 

that are unable to get the dust, they lose.  21 

That is unfortunate.  I would love to work with 22 

charter schools to figure out how we can learn 23 

from you, how we can make it better for you and 24 

for people who are not in charter schools.  What 25 
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we’ve set up is something that is separate and 1 

unequal when we have forced co-location and 2 

(background noise)— 3 

(Applause) 4 

MR. WILLIAMS:  --and one school receives and 5 

another school provide.  We fought back.  A 6 

charter school tried to come in here about a 7 

year ago.  I’m going to do everything— 8 

(Applause) 9 

MR. WILLIAMS:  --I can to fight another co-10 

location in this school until I’m told by the 11 

principal and the parents here that they - - 12 

another school to be here.  So whatever the 13 

community wants to do, if we want to chain 14 

ourselves to the door, I’ll be the first one 15 

there with the chains for the door. 16 

(Applause) 17 

MR. WILLIAMS:  This is our school where we 18 

need the resources to build us back to what it 19 

was.  I know that can be done, but it cannot be 20 

done if we force other schools to be - - here.  21 

So what if our children that don’t have access 22 

to Success Academy?  It’s our (background 23 

noise)— 24 

(Applause) 25 
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MR. WILLIAMS:  --and I want our school to 1 

stand up and we’re going to - - fight now.  I 2 

want everybody to follow me.  We will.  Hudde’s 3 

house.  Who lives here? 4 

GROUP:  Hudde’s house. 5 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Whose house? 6 

GROUP:  Hudde’s house. 7 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Whose house? 8 

GROUP:  Hudde’s house. 9 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Whose house? 10 

GROUP:  Hudde’s house. 11 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Whose house? 12 

GROUP:  Hudde’s house. 13 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Whose house? 14 

GROUP:  Hudde’s house. 15 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Whose house? 16 

GROUP:  Hudde’s house. 17 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Whose house? 18 

GROUP:  Hudde’s house. 19 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Whose house? 20 

GROUP:  Hudde’s house. 21 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Whose house? 22 

GROUP:  Hudde’s house. 23 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Whose house? 24 

GROUP:  Hudde’s house. 25 
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MR. WILLIAMS:  Whose house? 1 

GROUP:  Hudde’s house. 2 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Whose house? 3 

GROUP:  Hudde’s house. 4 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Whose house? 5 

GROUP:  Hudde’s house. 6 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Whose house? 7 

GROUP:  Hudde’s house. 8 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Whose house? 9 

GROUP:  Hudde’s house. 10 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Whose house? 11 

GROUP:  Hudde’s house. 12 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Whose house? 13 

GROUP:  Hudde’s house. 14 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Whose house? 15 

GROUP:  Hudde’s house. 16 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Whose house? 17 

GROUP:  Hudde’s house. 18 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Whose house? 19 

GROUP:  Hudde’s house. 20 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Whose house? 21 

GROUP:  Hudde’s house. 22 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Whose house? 23 

GROUP:  Hudde’s house. 24 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Whose house? 25 
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GROUP:  Hudde’s house. 1 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Whose house? 2 

GROUP:  Hudde’s house. 3 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Whose house? 4 

GROUP:  Hudde’s house. 5 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Whose house? 6 

GROUP:  Hudde’s house. 7 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Whose house? 8 

GROUP:  Hudde’s house. 9 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Whose house? 10 

GROUP:  Hudde’s house. 11 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Whose house? 12 

GROUP:  Hudde’s house. 13 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Whose house? 14 

GROUP:  Hudde’s house. 15 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Whose house? 16 

GROUP:  Hudde’s house. 17 

MR. WILLIAMS:  I’ve got another one for the 18 

people united will never be defeated.  The 19 

people united will never be defeated.  Hudde 20 

united will never be defeated.  Hudde united 21 

will never be defeated.  Hudde united will never 22 

be defeated.  Hudde united will never be 23 

defeated.  Hudde united will never be defeated.  24 

Hudde united will never be defeated.  Whose 25 
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house? 1 

GROUP:  Hudde’s house. 2 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Whose house? 3 

GROUP:  Hudde’s house. 4 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Whose house? 5 

GROUP:  Hudde’s house. 6 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Whose house? 7 

GROUP:  Hudde’s house. 8 

MR. WILLIAMS:  I said whose house? 9 

GROUP:  Hudde’s house. 10 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Whose house? 11 

GROUP:  Hudde’s house. 12 

MR. WILLIAMS:  What do you want, Hudde?  13 

What do you want, Hudde?  When do you want it?  14 

Now.  What do you want? 15 

GROUP:  Hudde. 16 

MR. WILLIAMS:  What do you want? 17 

GROUP:  Hudde. 18 

MR. WILLIAMS:  What do you want? 19 

GROUP:  Hudde. 20 

MR. WILLIAMS:  When do you want it? 21 

GROUP:  Now. 22 

MR. WILLIAMS:  What do you want? 23 

GROUP:  Hudde. 24 

MR. WILLIAMS:  When do you want it? 25 
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GROUP:  Now. 1 

MR. WILLIAMS:  What do you want? 2 

GROUP:  Hudde. 3 

MR. WILLIAMS:  When do you want it? 4 

GROUP:  Now. 5 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Everybody give yourselves a 6 

round of applause.  This is just the beginning. 7 

(Applause) 8 

MR. WILLIAMS:  I want to make sure that Eva 9 

Boskowitz (phonetic) understands if you come to 10 

somebody’s house, you first come and speak to 11 

them;  you don’t come and force yourself in 12 

here.  And I see the folks with all that said 13 

“Parent choice”.  Well, what about the parents 14 

that don’t get that choice?  What about the 15 

parents who won’t get into Success Academy?  16 

This is not the way to form a relationship.  I 17 

want every child to Succeed.  I want Success 18 

Academy children to succeed and I want Hudde’s 19 

child to succeed.  What we’re setting up here is 20 

an academy that is not workable.  Whose house? 21 

GROUP:  Hudde’s house. 22 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Peace out everybody. 23 

(Applause) 24 

MR. WILLIAMS:  This is just the beginning.  25 
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You all better get ready, it’s going to be a 1 

wild ride. 2 

(Applause) 3 

MS. BOVE:  The next speaker, Kareen Fure 4 

(phonetic), speaker nine.  Speaker nine, Kareen.  5 

Speaker 10, Kathy Walker. 6 

(Applause) 7 

MS. KATHY WALKER:  Good evening.  My name is 8 

Kathy Walker.  I’m a home owning resident of 9 

this neighborhood.  I am now raising my second 10 

generation of children in this area, so I speak 11 

from long personal experience.  The economically 12 

and politically motivated shift in delivering 13 

educational services are originally well 14 

intentioned seem to have taken a different turn.  15 

As Councilor Williams just indicated, we don’t 16 

seem to be getting back any helpful, positive, 17 

productive information in to the DOE run schools 18 

on what makes the charters so good.  I do not 19 

oppose charter schools.  I do not oppose charter 20 

education for everyone in this City.  I do 21 

oppose being railroaded, bamboozled and having 22 

people step in my house.  I oppose that. 23 

(Applause) 24 

MS. WALKER:  Success Academy does have a 25 



 47 

reputation for bulldozing its way into public 1 

school buildings.  Then using its vast financial 2 

and political right to take over the building.  3 

Look at Roy H. Mann. 4 

(Applause) 5 

MS. WALKER:  If there is absolutely a need 6 

for additional K through 5 seats, Success 7 

Academy already exists in Roy H. Mann.  It has 8 

been rendered an expansion in Roy H. Mann.  The 9 

middle school population of Roy H. Mann is being 10 

reduced to accommodate an increased enrollment 11 

in Success Academy.  So let’s just move the ball 12 

forward a little bit faster.  Don’t kill me by 13 

inches;  take over the building that is known as 14 

IS-78, no longer letting it be a co-location.  15 

Let the entire building be for Success Academy 16 

and let the middle school students come here. 17 

(Applause) 18 

MS. WALKER:  Let’s not have to bus our 19 

middle school students all the way down to the 20 

southern end of the district.  Thank you. 21 

(Applause) 22 

MS. BOVE:  Speaker - - Paulina Boulran 23 

(phonetic). 24 

(Applause) 25 
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MS. PAULINA BOULRAN:  I apologize for 1 

reading from a paper, but English is not my 2 

native language and I feel much more comfortable 3 

having the text in front of me.  My name is 4 

Paulina Boulran.  My child is a kindergarten 5 

scholar in Success Academy Bensonhurst.  I’d 6 

like to share some of my favorite things about 7 

the school.  First thing that I want to mention 8 

is a gift that Success Academy gives to all the 9 

scholars, a - - .  When our English learner 10 

entered kindergarten, she didn’t read at all;  11 

now she is reading Level K books.  Do you know 12 

what is Level K?  This is the beginning of 2
nd
 13 

grade. 14 

(Applause) 15 

MS. BOULRAN:  The couple of months ago, we 16 

were falling asleep.  Sadire (phonetic) was 17 

telling me about the book My Father’s Dragon.  18 

Let me say - - took their own bus.  She was 19 

going on and on with such a depth and so many 20 

details.  We usually speak Russian at home, but 21 

this was the time she was talking in English.  I 22 

couldn’t believe how much her vocabulary grew 23 

during this month in school.  I Googled the book 24 

right after to make sure that she told me the 25 
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right story, and she surely did.  More than 1 

that, I found that this book is a chapter book 2 

suggested for age 7 to 10;  our daughter is 5.  3 

She didn’t speak any English until she came to 4 

Success Academy in September.  She can 5 

understand, enjoy, detail and discuss this book 6 

in English. 7 

(Applause) 8 

MS. BOULRAN:  Great things are even better 9 

when you can share it with friends.  This year, 10 

all of my friends with kids age 5 to 8 at 11 

applied to Success Academy Bensonhurst;  12 

unfortunately, none of them won the lottery.  13 

Since Success Academy Bensonhurst got seven 14 

applications for each seat.  Excellent - - 15 

public education must be informed, not a prize 16 

in lottery.  That’s the reason I’m standing here 17 

today and that is the reason that our children 18 

and our community need another Success Academy. 19 

(Applause) 20 

MS. BOULRAN:  Thank you.  Thank you for 21 

(background noise)— 22 

(Applause) 23 

MS. BOVE:  Next speaker will be Diane 24 

Washington. 25 
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MS. DIANE WASHINGTON:  Good evening.  Now 1 

as I stand her tonight, it’s unfortunate that we 2 

have to be in a situation where we’re pitted 3 

against each other.  It’s the saddest thing that 4 

I sat here tonight with this.  I never thought, 5 

as a parent, I’d be brought into a fight against 6 

who should be in my child’s school.  7 

Unfortunately, I’m here tonight.  Well maybe 8 

it’s a good thing, because it has helped me to 9 

expand my horizons as a parent to advocate for 10 

my child.  As I look at the parents here, I’m 11 

surprised when I got here and see all this 12 

orange.  But everyone is here because you want 13 

the same things that I want as a parent.  14 

Unfortunately, as I said, we’re pitted against 15 

each other and it has come down to this.  We 16 

should find a better way to set up charters than 17 

to have a fight.  It should never be a situation 18 

where anything is forced on me.  My son’s school 19 

has a new dynamic principal, who really wants to 20 

expand— 21 

(Applause) 22 

MS. WASHINGTON:  --on their program in 23 

school.  Unfortunately, she’s saddened by a 24 

fight.  It’s not even her first year and she has 25 
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to contend with this kind of situation amidst 1 

trying to get her children to do the things that 2 

they need to do, the students in this school.  3 

My child looks forward to coming to this school.  4 

He got into another public school, but go 5 

through this neighborhood and he wanted to come 6 

here.  He has been so happy.  He’s involved in 7 

the afterschool program.  He’s in book clubs.  8 

He’s in all these different things.  He’s my 9 

only child and he has expanded so much because 10 

of Hudde.  My family has a tradition in Hudde.  11 

I have a nephew who graduated who is a speech 12 

pathologist.  And because of his education here 13 

at Hudde, he was able to get his father speech 14 

pathology a month ago when he suffered a serious 15 

stroke.  Now, you look at that.  I don’t want to 16 

fight and I know you don’t want to fight.  You 17 

were brought here because someone asked you to 18 

be here to support, just as we are here tonight.  19 

We need to find a better way to do this and not 20 

force yourself into a situation.  You, yourself, 21 

as parents, should take this back to Success 22 

Academy and say, “No, you know what, we need to 23 

find a better way to do this because this is not 24 

how it should be done”.  My taxpayer dollars 25 
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should not go for this.   1 

(Applause) 2 

MS. WASHINGTON:  My taxpayer dollars should 3 

be spent in a way where everyone gets a share of 4 

it, not the way that it’s being done right now.   5 

(Applause) 6 

MS. BOVE:  Okay.  Mr. Sophie. 7 

MR. SOPHIE:  Good evening.  I am a school 8 

teacher, I am a parent and I am a member of the 9 

community.  And what I don’t understand about 10 

this whole argument is why the people are in a 11 

community and they have a community school, why 12 

that community doesn’t control the education of 13 

its’ children.  That is something I just can’t 14 

get that in my head.  If someone comes into the 15 

community, they go to the school in their 16 

community and it should be for the community.  17 

And I want to just touch on a few things that 18 

were sad.  Yes.  We’re all in this together.  19 

We’re all in for the education of our children.  20 

I have two daughters;  one is just going into 21 

junior high school where I live in the 22 

neighborhoods and I’m well aware of the schools 23 

in the neighborhood and what they offer.  And I 24 

know that my children will get the best 25 
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education.  Well, I am a teacher, that’s what 1 

I do, so they should, but I’m a parent first.  2 

And the best indicator of good education is good 3 

parenting.  That’s the best indicator if a child 4 

will get a good education.  And let’s face it, 5 

people who are in charter schools have active 6 

parents and that is a big deal.  So let’s not 7 

fool around with the numbers that are given to 8 

us - - .  That’s just a fact.  Also a fact is, 9 

if you’re given a resource that others do not 10 

receive, you’re more likely to be successful. 11 

(Applause) 12 

MR. SOPHIE:  So members are mentioning that, 13 

“Well we’re not asking for anything from you”;  14 

yes you are, because my tax money is going to 15 

support you.  If you say you’re not asking for 16 

space;  yes you are, because you’re using the 17 

buildings for - - .  This is all—the fact is, if 18 

a community educates its children, it should be 19 

from the community.  Thank you. 20 

(Applause) 21 

MS. BOVE:  Next speaker, Obadiah Osibudu 22 

(phonetic). 23 

MR. OBADIAH OSIBUDU:  I’m - - .  I’m here to 24 

support the ISG-41 so that - - education of - -25 
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 .  For this purpose, number one, we don’t 1 

refer to this charter spring on this building.  2 

It’s going to affect the children who are here 3 

already.  The charter school, all of what you 4 

are saying tonight, some of them are true;  some 5 

of them are not true.  Because if you really 6 

want to educate these children, why do now some 7 

other schools across the District 19?  Why in - 8 

- they are closing District 19?  Some charter 9 

school - - goes there.  They are supposed to be 10 

educating these children.  Why are they closing?  11 

And you know, that’s why I ask the question.  12 

It’s not because of this - - ;  it’s because you 13 

guys are failing the children.  That’s why they 14 

are closing the schools. 15 

(Applause) 16 

MR.  OSIBUDU:  Please, we don’t want your 17 

child to be in this building.  Go and look for 18 

another place.  We want to educate our children.  19 

They are (background noise)— 20 

(Applause) 21 

MR. OSIBUDU:  --across the City.  Our - - 22 

work together in this building.  Most of the 23 

building - - the teacher.  There will be a lot 24 

of teachers and - - permission to - - to 25 
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Success.  Some of your teachers in the charter 1 

school, they think they are superior and they 2 

are no more superior.  They are there to educate 3 

our children and we don’t want to - - issues.  4 

You look at what is elementary like.  If you 5 

come to this building, this is like - - 6 

happening because (background noise)— 7 

(Applause) 8 

MR. OSIBUDU:  --to give them hope.  This 9 

building (background noise).  Yeah.  We don’t 10 

want that here.  Yeah, it’s like we said before.  11 

We are fighting for the children. 12 

MS. BOVE:  Ladies and gentlemen, please.  13 

Ladies and gentlemen, we do have children here.  14 

Please. 15 

MR. OSIBUDU:  All we are saying is the 16 

charter school is - - .  Why don’t you find your 17 

own building and there is no room for your 18 

charter school here. 19 

(Applause) 20 

MS. BOVE:  Next speaker.  Next speaker 21 

Olivia Odel (phonetic).  Next speaker, Michael 22 

Davis.   23 

MS. MARTIN:  Hi. 24 

MS. BOVE:  Yes, I remember the switch. 25 
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MS. MARTIN:  Yes.  We did a switch up.  I 1 

was five, and now I’m 16.  And I want to speak 2 

as a former parent of a child in charter school.  3 

My child was attending a charter school and was 4 

bullied, just like you think that I can’t or it 5 

don’t happen in a public school, he was bullied 6 

in a charter school.   7 

(Applause) 8 

MS. MARTIN:  I have seen in evidence of 9 

people in my family that have succeeded because 10 

of the gifted program that’s in here at Hudde - 11 

- .  I am here to speak as a former 12 

disappointment of the charter school.  And I 13 

took my child and he was supposed to come here 14 

at middle school, because I know the programs 15 

that were offered here at Hudde would give him a 16 

chance.  I am happy to stand on my - - today as 17 

a former person to have succeeded from the 18 

programs within this school.  I’m happy to stand 19 

today.  And the reason why were are not - - as 20 

parents and teachers and education of Hudde do 21 

not want to give you the inch to come in because 22 

we have seen how you have come in, take over 23 

wonderful programs from school, and then the 24 

school does not give all the children the 25 
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funding to continue programs that have been 1 

successful.  I am here in support and to tell 2 

you and to tell whoever is responsible for the - 3 

- that it’s going to give you to have at 4 

Success.  Please do not give another Success 5 

Academy the chance to get in and tear down 6 

something that has been built from - - years, 7 

and are successful academics that are offered 8 

here at this program.  Thank you. 9 

(Applause) 10 

MS. BOVE:  Next speaker, Darianna DeGal 11 

(phonetic). 12 

MS. DARIANNA DEGAL:  Good evening ladies and 13 

gentlemen.  English is not my first language and 14 

sorry that I didn’t really prepare any note to 15 

say what I want to say, but I thank you for 16 

understanding these mistakes.  Sorry about that.  17 

I am mother of four and one of my daughters, she 18 

is a scholar of Success Academy.  And I am so 19 

happy that she got accepted at that school.  And 20 

right now, my youngest son, also accepted to the 21 

school and I just want to share my opinion about 22 

this wonderful school.  My older daughter, she’s 23 

going to the private school in Manhattan.  And I 24 

just want nice folks working and I understood 25 
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that I can’t afford that school, the private 1 

school for my kids.  So I just was so sad and I 2 

brought my kids here and I coming from the - - 3 

location public school - - and they tell me - - 4 

and I was so upset when I saw that.  This is my 5 

opinion, again.  I wanted to see if my kids’ 6 

success in this country, of course, even if we 7 

are - - and this - - is so - - .  Every child in 8 

the United States deserves the good education 9 

and the good future. 10 

(Applause) 11 

MS. DEGAL:  Right now, right now I want to 12 

share with the people who doesn’t know what is a 13 

charter school, my own opinion.  This is 14 

wonderful school, the most important for every 15 

wise parents want the good quality education - -16 

 , the good - - to the kids - - , and they’re 17 

also respect for the older (crosstalk)— 18 

MS. BOVE:  (Interposing)  Your time is up. 19 

MS. DEGAL:  They’re very— 20 

MS. BOVE:  (Interposing)  I’m sorry. 21 

MS. DEGAL:  Their respect for all of them.  22 

It’s also so important.  Sometime I’m using the 23 

public transportation and we see the people with 24 

the kids.  It’s upsetting me. 25 



 59 

MS. BOVE:  Excuse me, miss.   1 

MS. DEGAL:  I’m so, so, so sorry.  I see the 2 

relationship in our kids within the— 3 

MS. BOVE:  (Interposing)  Okay.  But your 4 

time is up. 5 

MS. DEGAL:  --in the school which 6 

(crosstalk)— 7 

MS. BOVE:  (Interposing)  Okay.   8 

MS. DEGAL:  --within this - - and the 9 

(background noise) our teachers are the best.  10 

And the charter school— 11 

GROUP:  (Interposing)  Your time is up. 12 

MS. DEGAL:  Okay.  I’m finished.  Charter 13 

school is really, really, very good and 14 

successful. 15 

(Applause) 16 

MS. DEGAL:  Thank you. 17 

MS. BOVE:  I actually think - - two minutes.  18 

Once again, when - - please be respectful.  Next 19 

speaker will be Cheryl Durham (phonetic). 20 

(Applause) 21 

MS. CHERYL DURHAM:  I lost my pen.  Excuse 22 

me, miss.  Alright.  Now let me make this clear, 23 

I am a grandmother, not a mother, of this little 24 

sir here, Tristan Santeford (phonetic).  I have 25 
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four girls and the education that my four 1 

girls received is nothing compared to what 2 

Tristan is getting from Success Academy.  I 3 

(background noise)— 4 

(Applause) 5 

MS. DURHAM:  --Tristan to school.  He gets 6 

up 5:45 every morning happy and ready to go to 7 

school.  Does that tell any good parent - - 8 

times that that doesn’t bother him.  The 9 

education that this little child is getting, he 10 

is now reading at a 2
nd
 grade level and he’s so 11 

proud to tell people all on the street.  He has 12 

a book reading.  So I want to ask you, please I 13 

am not here to argue with anyone and all the 14 

bullying and all the negative things I’m hearing 15 

around here, I don’t think children should be 16 

listening and knowing what bullying is.  They 17 

can now change (background noise)— 18 

(Applause) 19 

MS. DURHAM:  --Success Academy should be 20 

coming into the school mix to make a difference.  21 

I see my Tristan walking to school - - .  He 22 

shakes hands, “Good morning, Mr. Dot.  Good 23 

morning, Mr. Dan.  Good morning and good 24 

morning”.  I’m telling you, these kids, all kids 25 
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deserve the best education they can have.  My 1 

four children, they received—I have to say that 2 

he is receiving the best education.  And I’m 3 

asking you, begging you, please - - , please 4 

give us a space, just give us two years and see.  5 

If you don’t want us, we will leave.   6 

(Applause) 7 

MS. BOVE:  The next speaker (background 8 

noise). 9 

MS. DURHAM:  This is my pride.  You want to 10 

hear him read? 11 

MS. BOVE:  Excuse me.  Hold your comment 12 

please.  Thank you.  Next speaker, Daniel Mooman 13 

(phonetic).   14 

MR. DANIEL MOOMAN:  Good evening.  To start 15 

off first, I thought that I’d be able to bring 16 

my son here so he could do his homework while he 17 

goes to school, but I was quite misinformed.  I 18 

am the parent of a Success student.  My son, 19 

first and foremost, not a Success student first;  20 

he is my son first.  And I do appreciate the 21 

opportunity that we received to have a - - .  I 22 

went to Lafayette High School when I was younger 23 

and I remember going back to see teachers that 24 

taught me and helped me to be who I am today.  25 
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And unfortunately, Lafayette is now closed or 1 

it was.  I also am an alumni of Hudde.  I 2 

graduated here in 1991 and I’m very proud of 3 

this school.  I remember as I walked into this 4 

auditorium that we performed in this auditorium.  5 

Those are the last memories that I have here 6 

before I graduated.  However, I remember, as a 7 

charter school parent, we are forced into a 8 

strange and impossible situation.  We are beyond 9 

happy to have a safe, positive learning 10 

environment, but I was born and raised here and 11 

I went to this school, and I can’t ignore the 12 

fact that our public schools are closing left 13 

and right in favor of charters.  Mixing young 14 

children with older children is irresponsible 15 

and the pressure should be on the DOE and our 16 

local representatives to correct these issues 17 

that have been forced on the parents that only 18 

want one thing, and that is a better education 19 

for their children. 20 

(Applause) 21 

MR. MOOMAN:  It’s time you - - grow as 22 

parents, learn more about what is at stake here, 23 

put pressure on the necessary people to correct 24 

these wrongs.  We have no choice.  We’re parents 25 
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who want more;  we have no choice.  These kids 1 

aren’t numbers.  It’s not about us as parents;  2 

it’s about these kids.  Don’t pin them against 3 

each other. Don’t make them start to 4 

differentiate themselves based on what school 5 

system they belong to.  I believe in school 6 

choice when the - - is not - - .  I don’t 7 

believe that moving the - - public education 8 

system into a position where it won’t grow to 9 

complete - - is the solution.  So no, I cannot 10 

support this co-location. 11 

(Applause) 12 

MS. BOVE:  The next speaker.  The next 13 

speaker will be Rabbi Samplar (phonetic).  Thank 14 

you, Rabbi. 15 

RABBI SAMPLAR:  Thank you.  Good evening.  I 16 

would say listening to all of the speakers that 17 

have been before me, it is very clear that every 18 

party is interested in a good - - education of 19 

the children.  Some of the speakers have 20 

emphasized before that they’re speaking for the 21 

Hudde side or they’re speaking from the charter 22 

school side;  everybody wants a great education 23 

for their children.  And I think it’s what 24 

everyone should have.  However, that’s not what 25 
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the discussion is about.  I mean, I wish every 1 

school and every child, I mean, I - - a child in 2 

this school, another graduate of Hudde.  3 

However, I’m a neighbor.  And as a neighbor, all 4 

I can tell you is what I see about the school 5 

and about what I see what’s going on.  And to 6 

see people pitted against one another is, to me, 7 

a really horrible thing to see.  And I’m - - to 8 

you, I watched - - since ’97 and I’ve seen 9 

what’s going on with Hudde;  it’s had its ups 10 

and it’s had its downs.  And I see that you have 11 

- - principal who is making progress - - .  We 12 

see all the kids who are there for the - - when 13 

they’re doing the fire drills, etcetera, 14 

etcetera.  They’re from desperate groups, 15 

desperate homes, but you know what, they’re all 16 

good kids and that’s saying that I believe that 17 

all the kids here are all good kids.  We love 18 

our children.  I mean, that is above all.  19 

However, I witness, as a neighbor and I - - from 20 

my - - point of view as to the experiment that 21 

seems to be one, two, three trial.  As a 22 

neighbor and this I must take issue with the 23 

people who called this meeting, that the 24 

neighbors on the blocks here were not invited to 25 
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speak.  I heard about this meeting 5:45 this 1 

evening and I felt that it was important to come 2 

here.  I mention to you very, very simple, two 3 

parts;  one is that a - - on the street now is 4 

very, very difficult and is awful.  And for a 5 

lot of little kids, I believe it’s a major 6 

problem;  second point that I want to mention, I 7 

don’t know how a - - is to go and encroach on 8 

the area of the school kids who are here, who 9 

are trying to develop their own lives, come to 10 

terms with their own circumstances.  I can only 11 

hope it can be dealt with in a wonderful 12 

friendly way.  And if this is the place for the 13 

charter school, - - , but I wish you all much 14 

blessing, much peace (background noise)— 15 

(Applause) 16 

RABBI SAMPLAR:  Thank you - - . 17 

(Applause) 18 

MS. BOVE:  Next speaker, Bryant Hammond 19 

(phonetic).  Next speaker, Madeline Louissan 20 

(phonetic). 21 

(Applause) 22 

MS. MADELINE LOUISSAN:  Good evening 23 

everyone. 24 

GROUP:  Good evening. 25 
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MS. LOUISSAN:  My name is Madeline 1 

Louissan and I am a teacher, an English teacher 2 

here at Hudde Junior High School.  And— 3 

(Applause) 4 

MS. LOUISSAN:  --I have a message or a last 5 

note Jumani Williams wanted to say to the 6 

parents and he said, “I don’t blame parents for 7 

trying to get the best education for their 8 

child, but I want to make sure everyone has the 9 

same opportunities”;  that’s from Jumani.  Okay.  10 

I decided to start off with a little quote.  11 

Back in 1858, Lincoln gave his address and he 12 

said, “A house divided against itself cannot 13 

stand”.  I believe this government, this school 14 

cannot endure permanently half Slade, half 15 

Hudde, half State, half Success Academy.  We 16 

cannot endure together.  We don’t want you to 17 

come to our school, not because we don’t want 18 

you, but you know what, to be honest, this is a 19 

mockery for us.  As a teacher here at Hudde 20 

Junior High School, this is a total mockery to 21 

us in that you are not giving us a chance to 22 

breathe. 23 

(Applause) 24 

MS. LOUISSAN:  Hudde cannot breathe with the 25 
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constant threat of a charter school coming 1 

into our house, so we are kindly and 2 

respectfully asking you to stay in yours, 3 

wherever that might be.  Please stay in yours 4 

and let us grow as a school with our new 5 

principal, we have a new assistant principal.  6 

We need to grow, breathe and flourish.  Yes, I 7 

have been here during ups and downs, but we are 8 

in a turnaround and we are ready for the future 9 

of the kids that are right here in this 10 

neighborhood, to service them the way they 11 

deserve to be serviced.  So I kindly ask you, 12 

let Hudde breathe. 13 

(Applause) 14 

MS. BOVE:  Please now, Ms. DeVao (phonetic) 15 

MS. DeVAO:  Hello parents of our community.  16 

Good evening.  I’m a proud parent of a Success 17 

Academy student who attends 1
st
 grade.  Our zoned 18 

school is a blue ribbon school and we chose SA.  19 

We chose SA not only because we knew that SA 20 

could provide the education, but that they could 21 

provide her with the things that she needed to 22 

know.  She needs to know that there are rules 23 

that need to be followed and SA does provide 24 

that.  SA provides discipline, but discipline in 25 
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a nurturing manner.   1 

(Applause) 2 

MS. DeVAO:  The teachers that teach at SA 3 

give all the kids, not—they don’t pick which kid 4 

they’re going to like;  they love all of them.  5 

They support every single one of them— 6 

(Applause) 7 

MS. DeVAO:  --in whatever manner they could 8 

support them.  When my daughter started SA we 9 

had - - real issues.  She would be on 10 10 

corrections every single day no matter what we 11 

did.  Do you know what the teachers did?  They 12 

called me and they asked “How we, together, we 13 

could work to address these issues”.  And 14 

together— 15 

(Applause) 16 

MS. DeVAO:  --we addressed (background 17 

noise).  Not a single of my daughter’s - - at 18 

school has she not gone to her school.  As of 19 

today, she has not missed a single day of school 20 

and we have always been on time, somewhere 21 

between 7:15 and 7:30.  In terms of the co-22 

location, co-locating wasn’t invented by SA.  23 

There are many schools that go for pre-K to 8
th
 24 

grade— 25 
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(Applause) 1 

MS. DeVAO:  --and they’re completely fine.  2 

Several parents in the school that we’re 3 

currently co-located with also had issues with 4 

us being there.  But as of the most current 5 

moment, we are getting along very, very well. 6 

(Applause) 7 

MS. BOVE:  The next speaker.  Next speaker 8 

is Yodle Innassau (phonetic). 9 

(Applause) 10 

MR. YODLE INNASSAU:  Hi folks.  So I’ve 11 

lived in this neighborhood for almost over 10 12 

years.  I love it.  I was brought up from a 13 

family of educators and I have a respect for 14 

teachers and also all the involved parents.  I’m 15 

probably one of the biggest defenders of child 16 

success and it’s a great thing.  It’s also—also, 17 

first thing, parents have been together - - for 18 

me, trying to fight for space.  I think one of 19 

the things I’ve heard today probably better 20 

addressed to the Department of Education than to 21 

us.  We’ve asked for space;  they said this was 22 

the space.  You know?  But I want to talk a 23 

little bit about Success Academy.  So I’ve got 24 

three kids;  my oldest student, Kane, is about - 25 
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- , and he goes to Success Academy that’s 1 

close to where we live now.  We have great 2 

schools in our neighborhood, and yet I think 3 

that Success Academy is just excellent.  They - 4 

- to us.  There’s two teachers in the classroom, 5 

field trips twice a month, if I just show up 6 

maybe unannounced and sit in the class for an 7 

hour, the fact that teachers pick up the phone, 8 

cell phone, you can call at night sometimes, you 9 

can call during the day.  All of this is great.  10 

It doesn’t really help you guys.  Right?  From 11 

the biggest thing to me great is that the kids 12 

who are going to be coming to this school, I 13 

believe in District 22 children, that’s there 14 

for the District 22 who want to have a great 15 

school.  I think that Success Academy would be 16 

that great school.  I think it’s going to be an 17 

asset to your neighborhood.  Based on what I 18 

know about Success Academy - - personally from 19 

my experience.  That’s all I wanted to say.  20 

Thank you very much. 21 

(Applause) 22 

MS. BOVE:  The next speaker (background 23 

noise).  The next speaker please, Victoria 24 

Naldisago (phonetic). 25 
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(Applause) 1 

MS. VICTORIA NALDISAGO:  Hello everyone.  My 2 

name is Victoria and I am a very happy and proud 3 

parent of one Success Academy scholar.  And 4 

forgive me, I’m a little bit nervous.  It’s a 5 

little bit too close for me and I did not 6 

prepare a speech, but I do want to tell you the 7 

reason I’m here today is - - .  If there is 8 

space available, it’s going to be great if we 9 

could share.  Our experience at Success Academy 10 

had this whole - - qualifications.  It was 11 

wonderful.  They were always able to come to 12 

parents, always able.  Kids do not interact with 13 

the charter, absolutely they are in different 14 

doors and some of them should hear that you do 15 

not want to pay your tax money for our 16 

education.  We also pay the tax money and 17 

charter schools are public schools;  Success 18 

Academy is a public school, and a public school 19 

that provides great education.  My daughter is 20 

in love with school.  We have long days;  we 21 

start at 7:15, we go until 4:30.  Yes, some days 22 

it’s very hard for me to wake her up, and the 23 

only thing that wakes her up is “Okay.  Sleepy, 24 

you’re going to be so late”.  In that moment, 25 
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she jumps up and she’s ready in five minutes 1 

to go to school. 2 

(Applause) 3 

MS. NALDISAGO:  One of the days she couldn’t 4 

go to school;  she had fever.  I hugged her and 5 

I felt that she was hot.  I said, “Sorry, but 6 

you have to miss the school”.  The child was 7 

crying for 15 minutes nonstop because she did 8 

not want to miss the school.  It’s been a great 9 

opportunity— 10 

(Applause) 11 

MS. NALDISAGO:  --for all the parents.  When 12 

our child you say takes away from you, but if 13 

there is space, it’s okay to share with 14 

everyone.  Some other parents were not given a 15 

choice.  We’re not taking over.  We aren’t. 16 

GROUP:  You’re going to take over. 17 

MS. NALDISAGO:  (Background noise) is great.  18 

So many years that we’ve been sharing and we 19 

stay where we are.  The kids do not interact.  20 

They have a very pleasant experience with - - 21 

now;  that’s in her school.  And it’s just going 22 

to benefit everyone.  We have - - .  It’s 23 

parent’s choice whether the parent wants to send 24 

them to charter, private or public and I wish 25 
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that everybody could do whatever they wanted 1 

to do, because for all of us, what matters is 2 

the best education for our children. 3 

(Applause) 4 

MS. NALDISAGO:  Thank you.  Thank you 5 

everyone. 6 

(Applause) 7 

MS. BOVE:  Next speaker.  The next speaker 8 

will be (background noise), it looks like Abi 9 

Santiago;  A-B-I.  Next speaker, Ruthkini 10 

Sanfluen (phonetic). 11 

MS. RUTHKINI SANFLUEN:  Good evening 12 

everyone.  I just will start with saying I’m 13 

really proud to be a parent on the block.  I’m 14 

involved a lot. 15 

(Applause) 16 

MS. SANFLUEN:  And I’m proud to see that 17 

there are so many parents that are fighting for 18 

their children’s rights;  it’s great.  However, 19 

you’re not fighting for my children’s rights at 20 

this moment I must say.  I have lived on this 21 

block for close to 30 years.  I found out about 22 

this meeting at 5:45 when I was home from work.  23 

Over the years, I have watch the many children 24 

grow and the family grow.  And there were times 25 
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that there was better communication and worse 1 

communication.  What I see now is another school 2 

coming onto our block with no communication.  3 

And what I see and what my neighbors see and 4 

have asked me to say is that we are going to 5 

create ill will.  There is so much congestion on 6 

the block as it is, school buses from private 7 

schools, from public schools come down the block 8 

in the morning.  The school gets an oil truck 9 

delivery at 8:20, nobody can move.   10 

(Laughter) 11 

MS. SANFLUEN:  Nobody, not the people that 12 

need to go to work, not the children, the 13 

children that are waiting on their corners for 14 

the buses to come.  Nobody moves.  Another 15 

school coming?  We are sunk. 16 

GROUP:  What about fire drills? 17 

MS. SANFLUEN:  Fire drills, another thing 18 

that happens at inconvenient times, and I 19 

understand.  I work in a school and they need to 20 

have them on different days and at different 21 

times of the day so that everybody can be 22 

prepared.  But if we have a fire drill, 20 23 

minutes nobody moves.  Another school is going 24 

to be doing another set of fire drills and we’re 25 
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stuck. 1 

(Applause) 2 

MS. SANFLUEN:  Again, I love my block and I 3 

want to continue living here.  However, I don’t 4 

want it to be with ill will.  Thank you. 5 

(Applause) 6 

MS. BOVE:  The next speaker, Adrianna 7 

Pauperty (phonetic). 8 

(Applause) 9 

MS. ADRIANNA PAUPERTY:  Hello everyone.  10 

Good evening.  My name is Pauperty.  I have a 1
st
 11 

grade scholar in Success Academy.  I want to 12 

tell you that she read chapter books right now, 13 

chapter books. 14 

(Applause) 15 

MS. PAUPERTY:  What kid or scholars in 16 

public—at the public schools read chapter books 17 

in 1
st
 grade?  No, they not.  They not read 18 

chapter books in 1
st
 grade, no.  You know what, 19 

this is not a fight.  We here just to support 20 

high quality of education for every kid in our 21 

community.   22 

(Applause) 23 

MS. PAUPERTY:  This is not a fight.  No?  So 24 

if school have to be - - enough that Success 25 
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Academy will always win.  That’s it, period. 1 

(Applause) 2 

MS. BOVE:  At this point, the last speaker, 3 

Karen Euro (phonetic). 4 

(Applause) 5 

MS. KAREN EURO:  Good evening everyone.  I 6 

am a parent of two children at Success Academy 7 

Bensonhurst.  When I went through the selection 8 

process for my children, I - - at PS-215 in 9 

Bensonhurst.  But when I applied for my children 10 

to get into PS-215, I was denied.  My children 11 

could not get in.  I had the resources to put my 12 

children in a parochial school, as well as an 13 

independent school.  But when I started, I found 14 

out that Success was coming to Bensonhurst and 15 

also another charter school was coming into the 16 

Bensonhurst area;  I applied to both.  My 17 

children got into both schools.  I’m worried 18 

about the co-location in a junior high school.  19 

But as time has gone on, the staff as well as 20 

the junior high school, which we are co-located 21 

in, have embraced us.  We respect them;  they 22 

respect us.  Our children are kindergarteners 23 

and 1
st
 graders on the fourth floor.  They 24 

successfully conduct fire drills.  They 25 
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successfully use the gymnasium.  And including 1 

several students often invite the students and 2 

the parents of Success Academy to come see the 3 

shows, their performances, and they have a 4 

mutually respectful relationship. 5 

(Applause) 6 

MS. EURO:  Just like you, I completely 7 

comprehend your right to stand up for your 8 

children to remain in this school.  I respect 9 

that.  But you also have to respect that parents 10 

are in this community who want a better choice.  11 

It is about choices.  And if you can make space 12 

for children to learn, that is the important 13 

thing.  It’s not a matter of we’re pushing your 14 

children out;  your children will continue to 15 

learn in this school if the teachers continue to 16 

teach them.  We have the opportunity to choose, 17 

so should other parents. 18 

(Applause) 19 

MS. EURO:  Thank you. 20 

(Applause) 21 

MS. BOVE:  We are adjourned.  Again, at this 22 

point, we won’t take any comments, but we thank 23 

you for what we have at this time before the 24 

Panel for Education Policy votes on this 25 
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proposal, which is May 20
th
, 2015.  It will be 1 

held at 6:00 p.m. at the Prospect Heights campus 2 

located at 883 Placid Avenue, Brooklyn, New 3 

York.  The email and phone number to where the 4 

comments can be made are 5 

d22proposals@schoolnyc.gov, telephone number 6 

(212) 374-0208.  Thank you for your 7 

participation.  Public meeting is now over.  8 

That’s all. 9 

[END RECORDING] 10 
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